

Special Educational Needs and Disability Policy

Policy Name:	Special Educational Needs and Disability Policy
Approved Date:	September 2023
Review Date:	September 2025

Contents

Our School Vision	3
INTENT	3
Rationale	3
Aims	3
Inclusion and Equal Opportunities	4
IMPLEMENTATION	4
Definitions	4
The Four Areas Of Need	5
Roles and Responsibilities of Staff	6
Identification and Assessment of Needs	8
Levels of support	10
Teaching Children who have a Special Educational Need	10
Access to the Curriculum.	10
Involving Pupils and Parents	
Working with Outside Agencies	
Reviewing Pupil Progress	12
IMPACT	12
Evaluating the effectiveness of the policy	12
Links to other Policies.	
Review	

Special Educational Needs and Disability Policy and Information Report

Our School Vision

Vision

Our vision is to create extraordinary learning, for all of our children to be proud of their achievements, develop resilience and grow as learners so that they can discover their place in the world, where their possibilities are endless!

INTENT

Rationale

All children learn at different rates. At some time during their school journey, children will experience some degree of difficulty, but some will experience a significantly greater lack of progress.

Children may experience problems in gaining full access to the curriculum, resources and facilities of the school in one or a combination of this (for example, physical access, vision, hearing, motor skills, speech, independence, self-esteem, concentration) and will need the help of additional support. This may happen either throughout or at anytime of their school journey. Some difficulties may be short term and easily solved by such things as an eye test or a meeting with parents. Others may require structured teaching programmes where learning is broken down into small steps or require the assistance of outside agencies, such as the support services, child psychologists, speech therapists or physiotherapists.

At Manor Primary, all staff seek to meet the challenge of educational entitlement for all children to a broad, balanced and differentiated curriculum, which is relevant to their needs. By identifying and supporting children with learning difficulties in a variety of ways, we hope to achieve this. We aim to enhance pupil's self-esteem, to recognise their achievements and to raise their educational expectations.

Aims

Our Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND) policy and Information Report aims to:

- Set out how our school will support and make provision for pupils with SEND.
- Provide pupils with SEND access to all aspects of school life so they can engage in the activities of the school alongside pupils who do not have SEND

- Help pupils with SEND fulfil their aspirations and achieve their best
- Help pupils with SEND become confident individuals living fulfilling lives
- Explain the roles and responsibilities of everyone involved in providing for pupils with SEND.

This policy and information report is based on the statutory <u>Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND)</u> <u>Code of Practice</u> and the following legislation:

- Part 3 of the Children and Families Act 2014, which sets out schools' responsibilities for pupils with SEND and disabilities
- The Special Educational Needs and Disability Regulations 2014, which set out schools' responsibilities for Education, Health and Care (EHC) plans, SEND coordinators (SENDCOs) and the SEND Information Report
- The Equality Act 2010 (section 20), which sets out the school's duties to make reasonable adjustments for pupils with disabilities
- The <u>Public Sector Equality Duty</u> (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010), which set out the school's responsibilities to eliminate discrimination, harassment and victimisation; and advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic (which includes having a disability) and those who don't share it.

Inclusion and Equal Opportunities

At Manor Primary School we strive to create an inclusive teaching environment that offers all pupils, no matter their needs and abilities, a broad, balanced and challenging curriculum. We are committed to offering all pupils the chance to thrive and fulfil their aspirations.

We will achieve this by making reasonable adjustments to teaching, the curriculum and the school environment to make sure that pupils with SEND are included in all aspects of school life.

IMPLEMENTATION

Definitions

The Code of Practice (2015) states that a pupil has Special Educational Needs if they have a learning difficulty or disability, which calls for special educational provision to be made for them.

Children will have a learning difficulty or disability if they have:

- A significantly greater difficulty in learning than the majority of the others of the same age, or
- A disability, which prevents or hinders them from making use of facilities of a kind generally provided for others of the same age in mainstream schools.

Special educational provision is educational or training provision that is additional to, or different from, that made for other children or young people of the same age by mainstream schools.

A child must not be regarded as having a learning difficulty solely because the language or form of language of their home is different from the language in which they will be taught.

Pupils are considered to have a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment that has a substantial and long-term adverse effect on their ability to do normal daily activities.

The school will make reasonable adjustments for pupils with disabilities, so that they are not at a substantial disadvantage compared with their peers.

The Four Areas Of Need

The needs of pupils with SEND are grouped into 4 broad areas. Pupils can have needs that cut across more than I area, and their needs may change over time.

Interventions will be selected that are appropriate for the pupil's particular area(s) of need, at the relevant time.

Area of Need	
Communication and interaction	Pupils with needs in this area have difficulty communicating with others. They may have difficulty understanding what is being said to them, have trouble expressing themselves, or do not understand or use the social rules of communication. Pupils who are on the autism spectrum often have needs that fall in this
	category.
Cognition and learning	Pupils with learning difficulties usually learn at a slower pace than their peers. A wide range of needs are grouped in this area, including: • Specific learning difficulties, which impact I or more specific aspects of learning, such as: dyslexia, dyscalculia and dyspraxia
	Moderate learning difficulties
	Severe learning difficulties
	 Profound and multiple learning difficulties, which is where pupils are likely to have severe and complex learning difficulties as well as a physical disability or sensory impairment
Social, emotional and mental health	These needs may reflect a wide range of underlying difficulties or disorders. Pupils may have: Mental health difficulties such as anxiety, depression or an eating disorder

	Attention deficit disorder, attention deficit hyperactive disorder or attachment disorder
	Suffered adverse childhood experiences
	These needs can manifest in many ways, for example as challenging, disruptive or disturbing behaviour, or by the pupil becoming withdrawn or isolated.
Sensory and/or physical	Pupils with these needs have a disability that hinders them from accessing the educational facilities generally provided. Pupils may have:
	 A sensory impairment such as vision impairment, hearing impairment or multi-sensory impairment
	A physical impairment
	These pupils may need ongoing additional support and equipment to access all the opportunities available to their peers.

Roles and Responsibilities of Staff

THE HEADTEACHER

Our Headteacher, Mrs. Julie Mills will:

- Work with the SENDCO and SEND Director to determine the strategic development of the SEND policy and provision within the school.
- Have overall responsibility for the provision and progress of learners with SEND and/or a disability.
- Work with the SENCO and school governors to make sure the school meets its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 with regard to reasonable adjustments and access arrangements
- Have overall responsibility for, and awareness of, the provision for pupils with SEND, and their progress
- Have responsibility for monitoring the school's notional SEND budget and any additional funding allocated by the LA to support individual pupils
- Advise the LA when a pupil needs an EHC needs assessment, or when an EHC plan needs an early review
- With the SENCO, monitor to identify any staff who have specific training needs regarding SEN, and incorporate this into the school's plan for continuous professional development
- With the SENCO, regularly review and evaluate the breadth and impact of the SEND support the school offers or can access, and co-operate with the LA in reviewing the provision that is available locally and in developing the local offer
- With the SENCO and teaching staff, identify any patterns in the school's identification of SEN, both
 within the school and in comparison with national data, and use these to reflect on and reinforce the

quality of teaching

LEAD PRACTITIONER FOR SEND/SENDCO

Our Special Educational Needs and Disability Co-Coordinator (SENDCO), Mrs. Julie Mills holds the National SENDCO Award Qualification.

They will:

- Work with the Headteacher and SEND Director to determine the strategic development of the SEND policy and provision in the school.
- Have day-to-day responsibility for the operation of this SEND policy and the co-ordination of specific provision made to support individual pupils with SEND, including those who have Education, Health and Care Plans.
- Provide professional guidance to colleagues and work with staff, parents, and other agencies to ensure that pupils with SEND receive appropriate support and high-quality teaching.
- Advise on the graduated approach to providing SEND support.
- Advise on the deployment of the school's delegated budget and other resources to meet pupils' needs
 effectively.
- Be the point of contact for external agencies, especially the local authority and its support services.
- Liaise with potential next providers of education to ensure that the school meets its responsibilities under the Equality Act 2010 with regard to reasonable adjustments and access arrangements.
- Ensure the school keeps the records of all pupils with SEND up to date.

TEACHING STAFF

Our class teachers and teaching assistants are each responsible for:

- The progress and development of every pupil their classes.
- Adapting, differentiating and scaffolding the curriculum required to meet the needs of all learners, including those with special educational needs.
- Working closely with staff in the setting and/or specialist staff to plan and assess the impact of reasonable adjustments and provision that is 'additional to' and 'different from' linked to their classroom teaching and any interventions that take place.
- Working with the SENDCO to review each pupil's progress and development and decide on any changes to provision that are required.
- Communicating effectively with parents at regular intervals and listen to pupil voice to ensure that provision meets the needs of each individual pupil.
- Ensuring they follow this SEND policy.

THE SEND DIRECTOR

Our SEND Director will:

- Help to raise awareness of SEND issues at Directors meetings.
- Monitor the quality and effectiveness of SEND and disability provision within the school and update the governing board on this.
- Work with the Headteacher and SENDCO to determine the strategic development of the SEND policy

and provision in the school.

PARENTS and CARERS

Parents and carers should inform the school if they have any concerns about their child's progress or development.

Parents and carers of a pupil on the SEND register will always be given the opportunity to provide information and express their views about the pupil's SEND and the support provided. They will be invited to participate in discussions and decisions about this support. They will be:

- · Invited to termly meetings to review the provision that is in place for their child
- Asked to provide information about the impact of SEN support outside school and any changes in the pupil's needs
- Given the opportunity to share their concerns and, with school staff, agree their aspirations for the pupil
- Given an annual report on the pupil's progress

The school will take into account the views of the parent or carer in any decisions made about the pupil.

PUPILS

Pupils will always be given the opportunity to provide information and express their views about their SEND and the support provided. They will be invited to participate in discussions and decisions about this support. This might involve the pupil:

- Explaining what their strengths and difficulties are
- Contributing to setting targets or outcomes
- Attending review meetings
- Giving feedback on the effectiveness of interventions

The pupil's views will be taken into account in making decisions that affect them, whenever possible.

Identification and Assessment of Needs

Early and accurate identification of children's Special Educational Needs is important as identifying an individual's needs at the earliest point and making effective provision improves long-term outcomes for the child or young person.

Assessment to identify a child's needs is continuous. We know if a pupil needs help if:

- Concerns have been raised by parents/carers, teachers, external agencies, the pupil's previous school or the pupil themselves.
- Assessments, such as those completed on entry or because of a raised concern, indicated a gap in knowledge or schools.

- Whole school pupil tracking of attainment outcomes indicate a lack of expected progress or low levels of attainment compared to expected standards.
- An observation of the pupil indicates they have additional needs.
- Concerns may be raised about progress in areas other than attainment, for example social needs.

It is important to note that slower progress and low attainment will not automatically mean a pupil has SEND.

The assessment of children reflects as far as possible their participation in the whole curriculum of the school.

At Manor Primary, we follow the graduated approach the four part cycle of assess, plan, do and review model to support children with SEND so that provision meets their needs and that their progress is monitored.

Stage	Actions
Assess	Assessments are made using school data, I:I assessments and pupil
	observations
Plan	Specific outcomes are planned for with 'additional to and different
	from' support identified and a provision map is created
Do	Strategies will be implemented — progress will be closely monitored.
Review	Progress is reviewed — external agency support may be sought if pupil
	progress is limited despite intervention and high levels of support

Class teachers, in liaison with our school SENDCO, will develop a good understanding of each pupils' individual needs. This will include – teacher assessment information, pupil observations, the views and experiences of parents, the pupils' own views and advice from external agencies.

Using the assessments made, the SENDCO will work with parents, teachers and other key professionals, where appropriate, to plan an appropriate programme of support.

For a small percentage of pupils, whose needs are significant and complex and the SEND support required to meet their needs cannot be met within our schools' resources, a request will be made to the local authority to conduct an assessment of education, health and care needs. This may result in an Education, Health and Care (EHC) plan being provided. Any professional working with a child or family can make a referral to the authority for an Education, Health and Care Needs Assessment. Alternatively, parents/carers can make a direct request for an Education, Health and Care Assessment should they feel this is appropriate after consulting with the SENDCO/Head Teacher.

The identification and assessment of the special educational needs where English is an additional language requires care. Where there is uncertainty about a particular child, a teacher will look at all aspects of the child's performance in different subjects to establish whether the problems are due to limitations in their command of English or arises from a SEND.

Levels of support

School-based SEN provision

Pupils receiving SEN provision will be placed on the school's SEND register. These pupils have needs that can be met by the school through the graduated approach. Where the pupil's needs cannot be adequately met with inhouse expertise, staff will consider involving an external specialist as soon as possible.

The provision for these pupils is funded through the school's notional SEND budget.

On the census these pupils will be marked with the code K.

Education, health and care (EHC) plan

Pupils who need more support than is available through the school's school-based SEN provision may be entitled to an EHC plan. The plan is a legal document that describes the needs of the pupil, the provision that will be put in place, and the outcomes sought.

The provision for these pupils will be funded from the school's notional SEND budget, and potentially from the LA (from the high-level needs funding block of the dedicated schools grant).

On the census these pupils will be marked with the code E.

Teaching Children who have a Special Educational Need

Teachers are responsible and accountable for the progress and development of all pupils in their class. High quality teaching is our first step in responding to pupils who have Special Educational Needs and Disabilities. Class teachers will lead the learning and provision for children with SEND in their class to ensure that progress can be made — this will include making reasonable adjustments within the classroom and providing learning opportunities that are additional to and different from their peers, including targeted interventions. Interventions can include I:I or small group work to support with fine motor skills, gross motor skills, phonics and working memory.

Children identified with Special Educational Needs will have their own individual targets set throughout each term and support within class and interventions are put in place to ensure that progress is made.

Our school SENDCo closely monitors the progress and attainment of children identified as having SEND and will support teachers and liaise with external agencies as required

Access to the Curriculum

All children have an entitlement to a broad and balanced curriculum, which is differentiated to enable children to:

understand the relevance and purpose of learning opportunities;

experience levels of understanding and rates of progress that bring feelings of success and achievement.

Teachers use a range of strategies to meet children's SEND. Lessons have clear learning objectives; work is differentiated appropriately, and assessments are used to inform the next stage of learning. For any child identified with a Special Educational Need and therefore receiving SEND Support or have an Educational, Health and Care Plan, they will have their own Individual Action Plan (IAP). IAPs employ a

small-step approach, by breaking down the existing levels of attainment into finely graded steps and targets so that we ensure that children experience success.

We support children in a manner that acknowledges their entitlement to share the same learning experiences that their peers enjoy. Teaching staff support small groups and individuals in English and Maths and across the curriculum to achieve the targets set on their IAPs.

Involving Pupils and Parents

At Manor, we encourage children to take responsibility and to make decisions. This is part of the culture of our school and relates to children of all ages. The work in the Foundation Stage recognises the importance of children developing social as well as educational skills.

Children are involved at an appropriate level in setting targets in their Individual Action Plans (IAPs) and in the termly IAP review meetings. Children are encouraged to make judgements about their own performance against their IAP targets. We recognise success here as we do in any other aspect of school life. The school works closely with parents in the support of those children with SEND. We encourage an active partnership through an ongoing dialogue with parents.

There are regular meetings each term to share the progress of children with their parents. We inform the parents of any outside intervention, and we share the process of decision-making by providing clear information relating to the education of children who have SEND.

We will have an early discussion with the pupil and their parents when identifying whether they need special educational provision. These conversations will make sure that:

- Everyone develops a good understanding of the pupil's areas of strength and difficulty
- We take into account the parents' concerns
- Everyone understands the agreed outcomes sought for the child
- Everyone is clear on what the next steps are
- Regular review meetings will also take place in order to share pupil progress with their parents. We
 inform the parents of any outside intervention, and we share the process of decision-making by
 providing clear information relating to the education of children with SEND.
- Notes of these discussions and meetings will be added to the pupil's record and a copy given to their parents.
- If a parent/carers have any concerns regarding their child and any additional needs, they are able to contact their child's teacher or our SENDCo.

Working with Outside Agencies

At Manor Primary, we access support from a range of health and social care bodies, local authority support services and voluntary sector organisations in order to support and meet the needs of our pupils' with SEND and their families.

We work closely with our Educational Psychologist as well as other external agencies to support individual children's needs within our school including GPs, school nurse, CAMHS (Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service), Speech and Language Therapists, Occupational and Physiotherapists, Outreach and children's services including Early Help Teams and Social Workers.

Reviewing Pupil Progress

Teachers will work with the SENDCO to carry out a clear analysis of the pupil's needs. This will draw on:

- The teacher's assessment and experience of the pupil
- Their previous progress and attainment or behaviour
- Other teachers' assessments, where relevant
- The individual's development in comparison to their peers and national data
- The views and experience of parents
- The pupil's own views
- Advice from external support services, if relevant

All staff who work with the pupil will be made aware of their needs, the outcomes sought, the support provided, and any teaching strategies or approaches that are required. We will regularly review the effectiveness of the support and interventions and their impact on the pupil's progress.

IMPACT

Children identified as having Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities are fully included within all aspects of school life. Their needs are identified and appropriate support that is additional to and different from their peers enables children to succeed. Children with Special Educational Needs and/or Disabilities access our learning environment, our curriculum and our full range of learning opportunities. Pupil voice is valued and parents are fully involved with their child's learning journey at school.

Evaluating the effectiveness of the policy

We are constantly looking for ways to improve our SEND policy. We will do this by evaluating whether or not we are meeting our objectives set out in section 1.

- We will evaluate how effective our SEND provision is with regards to:
- All staff's awareness of pupils with SEND at the start of the autumn term
- How early pupils are identified as having SEND
- Pupils' progress and attainment once they have been identified as having SEND
- Whether pupils with SEND feel safe, valued and included in the school community
- Comments and feedback from pupils and their parents

Links to other Policies

- Teaching and Learning Policy
- Feedback and Marking Policy
- Assessment policy
- Equality information Policy
- SEN information report
- The local offer
- Accessibility plan
- Relationship and Behaviour policy
- Supporting pupils with medical conditions policy
- Attendance policy
- Safeguarding / child protection policy
- Complaints policy

Review

This policy will be reviewed annually by staff and Directors

The Director may however review the policy earlier than this if Government introduce new regulations or if the Directors receive recommendations about how the policy may be improved.